
Santa Clara City Council Page 1 
September 2, 2015 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 

MINUTES 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 

UTAH, met for a Special Meeting on Wednesday, September 2, 2015, at 5:00 p.m. in the City 

Council Chambers of the Town Hall at 2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 

 

Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 

member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum 

and also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least two 

days before the meeting. 

 

Present:   Mayor Rick Rosenberg 

Council Members: David Whitehead, Herb Basso, Ken Sizemore and Tode (Mary Jo) Hafen  

City Manager:         Edward Dickie 

City Staff:      Chris Shelley 

 

Others Present: Brad Hays, Parks Director; Dan Nelson, Fire Chief; Matt Ence, City Attorney; 

Corey Bundy, Building Official; Jarett Waite  

 

1. Call to Order:  Mayor Rosenberg called the meeting to order at 5:04 p.m. Mayor welcomed 

everyone to the City Council Meeting.  He excused Councilman Amundsen.  He also asked if 

the Council could jump down to Item 2A2 because Matt Ence, City Attorney was in route. 

 

2. Working Agenda: 

  

A. General Business:                                                                  

 

2. Discussion and/or Approval of Power Agreement.  Presented by Jack Taylor, Public 

 Works Director.  (Jack was excused from the meeting because he is out of town.) 

 
- Mayor Rosenberg stated that this is the Carbon Free Power Project Study Phase Siting 

Agreement.  He said that they talked a little about it at UAMPS.  This is the agreement to 

site the new scale nuclear project.  He said that legal counsel has reviewed the agreement. 

It talks about housing the nuclear modules in Idaho and that it generates up to 50 

megawatts of power. The City’s cost is based on the percentage that is taken.  The 

agreement goes into effect now but the power won’t come online until late 2023.  He 

stated that the City is getting the advantage of the Federal Grant that is covering 50% and 

possibly more of the cost of the project.  He said that once you’re in you can stay in or 

get out at any time.  But if you’re out you may not be able to get in and take advantage of 

the grant.  He said that if the City doesn’t need that power they can sell it to another user. 

- Ed Dickie, City Manager mentioned that the Council should have Jack’s staff report.  

He stated that the nuclear power modules are pretty awesome.  He feels that it is a good 

opportunity to be involved with it. 

- Herb Basso stated that it is cheaper power. 

- David Sizemore asked about the cost of $3 million being just a portion and if it doesn’t 



Santa Clara City Council Page 2 
September 2, 2015 

include the grant money and if that is 1/12 of the nuclear plant and if that is what the City 

is buying into. 

- Matt Ence stated that was just an example and not the true cost.  He referred to 

Schedule I at the end of the agreement.  (See attached.) It shows that Santa Clara’s 

elected share currently is 2.5962%.  This agreement gives the City an opportunity, if they 

feel it is getting to expensive, to give notice to withdraw. 

- Ed Dickie stated that UAMPS is really good at waiting for the City’s budget and the 

new year and that they wouldn’t just throw this at the City and expect a large sum that 

month.  He stated that he was pretty confident that the City will be able to budget for this. 

- Matt Ence said that development costs will begin as soon as the agreement is in place.   

He said he doesn’t think they won’t start the process until they have a significant number 

of participants involved.  He stated that in reviewing this he didn’t see anything that is 

really different from what the City is already doing. 

- Herb Basso recalled that the power budget had money in reserve to use for things like 

this. 

- Mayor Rosenberg stated that they still have to come back with some numbers and the 

Council has to agree to those numbers.  He stated that they are still going through the 

approval process with the Department of Energy. 

- Matt Ence said that the agreement does set a cap on preparatory cost and they have 

capped that at $210,000.  Before the City sees an overall budget the most the City is 

committing to is our share of the $210,000.   

- David Whitehead asked that if it shuts down, does the City run the risk of losing their 

money. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that they would.  He also said the site has already been approved 

by the EPA. 

- Tode Hafen stated that she was surprised that there has been some environmental stuff 

because she thought all of that had already been gone through. 

- Mayor Rosenberg explained that a lot of environmental stuff is time sensitive.  They’ve 

already cleared it through the EPA.   

- Matt Ence said that he has reviewed the agreement and it is very well done. 

 

****Motion to Approve the Power Agreement. 

Motion by Herb Basso, seconded by David Whitehead 

Voting Aye: Tode Hafen, Herb Basso, David Whitehead and Ken Sizemore. 

Voting Nay: None. 

Motion Approved.   

 

1. Discussion and/or Action to approve Recycling Ordinance No. 2015-18 for Santa Clara 

City.  Presented by Matt Ence, City Attorney. 

 

 - Matt Ence stated that the ordinance proposed is based on the model ordinance by the 

 Solid Waste District.  It is the ordinance that provides the opt out option with a few 

 modifications to adjust dates and things to work with the City’s timing.   It states there is 

 an opt out option until October 31, 2015.  He stated that he noticed that when he  

 received his bill this month, there was a flyer in it explaining this Recycling Program and 

 how to opt out. He stated that he made the ordinance reflect what is says in the flyer.  He  

 said that if there was enough participation, the program will start January 1, 2016.  The  

 fee will be $4 per household.  That fee is for those who do not opt out.  Those that do opt 



Santa Clara City Council Page 3 
September 2, 2015 

 out won’t be assessed anything.  He said that the ordinance can be modified if needed. 

 - Herb Basso asked if that rate was locked in.   

 - Matt Ence explained that the $3.82 is already determined by the agreement. He said that 

 amount could drop down if participation is high enough.  He said that they could break it 

 out to the $3.82 and the 18 cents will be for administrative costs if the Council preferred. 

 - Ed Dickie stated that it was a straight fee.  He said the 18 cents will be kept in the City 

 for administrative fees.  He stated that on the utility bill there will just be a line for 

 recycling for $4.00. 

 - Matt Ence stated that the City could conceivably make everyone pay for that 

 administrative fee whether they opt in or not.   

 - Ed Dickie stated that they wouldn’t have any additional costs if it was mandatory. 

 - Mayor Rosenberg stated that Hurricane City went with mandatory to avoid the

 Administrative Fees. 

 - Matt Ence stated that he used the districts system for opt out.  He said that this is 

 basically the stepping stone for mandatory service.  He said the reason why was because

 after October 31, 2015, there is no more opting out.  He said that after that new homes 

 will automatically be in.  He also said that when a homeowner sells their home, the new 

 owner is in. 

 - Herb Basso asked why they should force people into something.  He feels there is no 

 choice.  He mentioned about rentals.  He feels that the line should be taken off of the 

 agreement about the utility change because it causes a person to lose that option. 

- Matt Ence stated that the rentals don’t change on the change of tenants, it’s only with 

the change of ownership.  He stated that the City is not giving people the option to stay 

out of the program forever unless they stay in their home and never sell it. He said what             

the City is giving them is the opportunity to opt out at the beginning of the program.  He 

said that this is a question of how do we handle our waste.  People are already mandated 

for trash pickup.  It is part of an overall approach to waste management.  He said this is 

residential only.  He also said that this does not affect commercial businesses. 

 

****Motion to Approve Recycling Ordinance No. 2015-18 for Santa Clara City. 

Motion by Ken Sizemore, seconded by Tode Hafen. 

Voting Aye: Tode Hafen, David Whitehead and Ken Sizemore. 

Voting Nay: Herb Basso. 

Motion Carried. 

 

  - Mayor Rosenberg reminded the Council that there will be an item on September 23  

  (solar power).  He stated that next week’s meeting is a regular City Council Meeting and  

  there will be an agenda item on the BLM Resource Management Plan.  He said the  

  Council needs to discuss this and give them some feedback.  He said that he will email  

  the link to their site to the City Council. 

  - Tode Hafen asked what the BLM needs with water rights.   

  - Mayor Rosenberg stated that he doesn’t want to answer questions for them. 

  - Ken Sizemore stated that they want to preserve the water for the natural activities that  

  happen on the land.  He stated that if Santa Clara City Council submits a letter it will  

  carry more weight.  

  - Mayor Rosenberg said that he is going to have the County send a representative for  

  next week’s meeting to discuss this.  He asked the Council to take a few minutes and go  

  to the website and look at the plan.  



Santa Clara City Council Page 4 
September 2, 2015 

  - Ed Dickie stated that the County is trying to come up with a plan to present to the 

   BLM.   

  

3. Motion to adjourn by Ken Sizemore. 

 Seconded by Herb Basso with all members present voting aye. 

 Meeting Adjourned at 5:47 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

    __________________________    Date Approved: ________________ 

Chris Shelley – City Recorder 

 


